
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Sharon Hughes 
 (Tel: 01443 864281   Email: hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 5th September 2023 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
A multi-locational meeting of the Planning Committee will be held in the Council Chamber, Penallta 
House, and via Microsoft Teams on Wednesday, 13th September, 2023 at 5.00 pm to consider the 
matters contained in the following agenda.  You are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a minimum 
notice period of 3 working days is required should you wish to do so.  A simultaneous translation will be 
provided on request.  
 
Members of the public or Press may attend in person at Penallta House or may view the meeting live via 
the following link: https://civico.net/caerphilly   
 
 

This meeting will be live-streamed and a recording made available to view via the Council’s website, 
except for discussions involving confidential or exempt items.  Therefore the images/audio of those 
individuals present and/or speaking at Planning Committee will be publicly available to all via the 

recording on the Council website.  
 

 
Interested parties may make a request to speak in regard to any item on this agenda. To obtain further 
details on this process please contact the Committee Clerk hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk.   
 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Public Document Pack

https://civico.net/caerphilly
https://civico.net/caerphilly
mailto:hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk


Pages 
  

1  To receive apologies for absence. 
  

 
2  Declarations of Interest. 

  
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers. 

 
 
To approve and sign the following minutes: -  
 
3  Planning Committee held on 16th August 2023. 

1 - 4  
 

To receive and consider the following report(s): -  
 
4  Application No. 23/0451/COU - 54-56 Queens Road, Elliot's Town, New Tredegar, NP24 6DZ. 

5 - 14  
 

 
Circulation: 
Councillors M.A. Adams, Mrs E.M. Aldworth (Vice Chair), A. Angel, R. Chapman, N. Dix, G. Ead, 
J.E. Fussell, A. Hussey, B. Miles, M. Powell, R. Saralis (Chair), J. Simmonds, J. Taylor, S. Williams, 
A. Whitcombe and K. Woodland 
 
And Appropriate Officers 
 
HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION 

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting, 
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed.  Minutes of Meetings including details 
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. 
 

You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and 
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed. 
For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy 

Notice on our website or contact Legal Services by email griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028. 

 
 

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk


 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF THE MULTI-LOCATIONAL MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE  
AND VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON WEDNESDAY, 16TH AUGUST 2023  

AT 5:00 PM 
 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R. Saralis – Chair 
Councillor Mrs E. M. Aldworth – Vice Chair 

 
 

Councillors: 
 

M. A. Adams, A. Angel, R. Chapman, A. Hussey, B. Miles, M. Powell, J. Taylor, S. 
Williams, A. Whitcombe and K. Woodland. 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor P. Leonard (Planning and Public Protection). 

 
 

Together with: 
 
 V. Julian (Senior Lawyer), R. Kyte (Head of Regeneration and Planning), R. Thomas 
 (Planning Services Manager), C. Powell (Team Leader Development Management),  

M. Godfrey (Team Leader - Pollution Control) and E. Sullivan (Committee Services 
Officer). 
 
 
RECORDING, FILMING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The Chair reminded those present that the meeting was being live-streamed and a 
recording made available to view via the Council’s website, except for discussions 
involving confidential or exempt items – Click Here to View.  Members were advised that 
voting on decisions would be taken via Microsoft Forms.   

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor N. Dix, G. Ead, J.E. Fussell and  
J. Simmonds. 
 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
 Councillor R. Chapman declared a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to Agenda 

Item No. 4 - Application No. 22/0072/FULL - Land At Grid Ref 311809 189556, Windsor 
Way, Abertridwr, in that a close family member works for the Applicant.  He left the 
meeting when the item was discussed and took no part in the debate or vote. 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://civico.net/caerphilly


3. PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 14TH JUNE 2023  
 

It was moved and seconded that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 
the 12th July 2023 be agreed as a correct record.  By way of Microsoft Forms and verbal 
confirmation (and in noting there were 11 for, 0 against and 1 abstention) this was agreed 
by the majority present. 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on  
12th July 2023 (minute nos. 1-5) be approved as a correct record. 
 

 
4. APPLICATION NO. 22/0072/FULL - LAND AT GRID REF 311809 189556, WINDSOR 

WAY, ABERTRIDWR  

 
The Planning Case Officer presented the application, with it confirmed in the 
accompanying report that the recommendation in respect of the proposal had taken full 
account of, and was in conformity with, both Future Wales and Planning Policy Wales 
Edition 11.   
 
Members were asked to note that there as a typographical error within the Officer’s report 
which should state that the application was for 152 and not 153 dwellings. 
 
 Following consideration of the application it was moved and seconded that subject to an 
amendment to Condition (10), additional Conditions (19, 20, 21, 22), an additional Advisory 
Note and the Conditions contained in the Officer’s report, the recommendation be approved.  
By way of Microsoft Forms (and in noting there were 11 for, 0 against and 0 abstentions) 
this was unanimously agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that: - 
 
(i) Subject to an amendment to Condition (10), additional Conditions (19, 20, 

21, 22), and an additional Advisory Note and the Conditions contained in 
the Officer’s report, the recommendation be APPROVED.  
 

(ii) Amended Condition 10  
 
Prior to the commencement of any construction works on site a scheme 
depicting hard and soft landscaping shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Those details shall include: 
  
(a) Proposed finished ground levels or contours; means of enclosure; car 
parking layouts; other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 
hard surfacing materials; minor structures including furniture, play 
equipment, refuse or other storage units; and 
 
(b) Proposed and existing functional services above and below ground 
(e.g. drainage, power, communications cables, pipelines etc. indicating 
lines, manholes etc.); and 
 
(c) Planting plans; written specifications (including cultivation and other 
operations associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of 
plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities where 
appropriate. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed 
scheme and all planting, seeding, turfing/hard landscaping works 
comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the 
first planting season following the occupation of the buildings or the 

Page 2



completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or 
plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and 
species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 
variation. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area in accordance 
with policies CW2 and SP6 of the adopted Caerphilly County Borough 
Local Development Plan up to 2021. 

 
  (iii) Additional Condition (19) 
 

Prior to the commencement of the development a scheme shall be submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority to deal with the 
contamination of the site. That scheme shall include a ground investigation 
and a risk assessment to identify the extent of the contamination and the 
measures to be taken to avoid risk to the occupants of the development when 
the site is developed. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved scheme. 

 
REASON: In the interests of public health and in accordance with policy CW2 
of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021. 

 
  (iv) Additional Condition (20) 
 

Before any soils or hardcore that do not fall within the green category set out 
in Table 2 of the WLGA document 'Requirements for the Chemical Testing 
of Imported Materials for Various End Uses and Validation of Cover Systems 
2013' are brought on to site, a scheme for their importation and testing for 
contamination shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
REASON: In the interests of public health and in accordance with Policy 
CW2 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021. 

 
  (v) Additional Condition (21) 
 

No building approved by this permission shall be occupied or approved uses 
commence until a report has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority which verifies that the required works have been 
undertaken in accordance with the remediation strategy. 

 
REASON: To protect public health and in accordance with Policy CW2 of the 
Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021. 

 
 
  (vi) Additional Condition (22) 
 

Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to the commencement of works 
on site details of the proposed public open space designed in accordance 
with the standards set out in Fields in Trust guidance, and the timing of their 
provision and long term maintenance, shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the agreed details. 

 

Page 3



REASON: To ensure the adequate provision of public open space in 
accordance with Policy CW10 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local 
Development Plan up to 2021. 
 
Advisory Notes 
 

(vii) The applicant be advised that that any off site proposals will require 
highway licences/agreement and no work shall be undertaken on or 
adjacent to the adopted highway until such have been agreed in writing 
and therefore it is advised that the applicant discuss requirements as 
soon as possible after planning permission is granted. 

 
(viii) The applicant be advised that the proposed off site works may require a 

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) and as such the cost of such order will be 
borne by the applicant. Full details should be discussed with Highway 
officers once permission is granted. 

 
 Additional Advisory Note 

 
(ix) The applicant be advised that compliance with condition 22 of this consent 

will need to be secured via the applicant entering into an Agreement under 
S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 upon the successful 
completion of the purchase of the land. Such an agreement cannot be 
entered into whist the Council still owns the land. 

 
 

 
 

The meeting closed at 5.20 pm. 
 
 

 
Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 13th September 2023, they were signed by 
the Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 4



Application Number: 23/0451/COU 
 
Date Received: 12.07.2023 
 
Applicant: MR P Nadrajah 
 
Description and Location of Development: Change the use of ground and basement 
floors from A3 use to retail A1 use and conversion of first floor - 54 - 56 Queens Road 
Elliot's Town New Tredegar NP24 6DZ  
 
APPLICATION TYPE: Change of Use 
 
SITE AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
Location: The site is located along Queen's Road, in Elliot’s Town, New Tredegar. 
 
Site description: The site is a two storey, corner plot structure, that benefits from a 
basement space to the rear due to the drop off in ground levels. The structure is 
currently vacant and in a poor state of upkeep. The change of use will mean minor 
changes to the facade of the building to replicate that of a standard shop. 
 
Development: The proposed development is for a change of use of the building coming 
in two parts; the ground floor will be changing use from its current A3 lawful use to an 
A1 shop, and the first floor space (also currently A3) will be converting to a three 
bedroom flat, which falls under use class C3. 
 
Dimensions: Not applicable. 
 
Materials: Listed as a 'fair-faced' wall finish, with the roofing utilising 'dark grey/ coffee 
brown slates' and the fenestrations; 'black colour UPVC'. 
 
Ancillary development, e.g. parking: None. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 2010 TO PRESENT None. 
 
POLICY 
 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN The Caerphilly County Borough Local Development 
Plan up to 2021 - Adopted November 2010. 
 
Site Allocation: The site is within settlement limits. 
 
Policies:  SP1 Development Strategy - (Development within the Heads of the Valley 
Regeneration Area (HOVRA)), SP4 (Settlement Strategy), SP5 (Settlement 
Boundaries), SP6 (Place Making), SP10 (Conservation of Natural Heritage), SP21 
(Parking Standards),CW2 (Amenity), CW3 (Design considerations - Highways), CW5 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



(Protection of the Water Environment), CW15 (General Locational Constraints) together 
with advice contained within LDP4: Trees and Development, LDP5: Car Parking 
Standards and LDP6: Building Better Places to Live. 
 
NATIONAL POLICY Future Wales: The National Plan (February 2021), Planning Policy 
Wales Edition 11 (February 2021) and Technical Advice Note 12: Design (March 2016). 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
Did the application have to be screened for an EIA? No. 
 
Was an EIA required? Not required. 
 
COAL MINING LEGACY 
 
Is the site within an area where there are mining legacy issues? The site falls into an 
area deemed to possess 'high risk' associated with development, informative advice will 
be provided regarding this. 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Transportation Engineering Manager - CCBC - No objection subject to conditions. 
 
Environmental Health Manager - No objection subject to conditions. 
 
ADVERTISEMENT 
 
Extent of advertisement: The application was advertised by means of neighbour letter, a 
site notice was additionally fixed to an adjacent lamppost. 
 
Response: One response was received however this was a summary of the neighbour 
consultation comments, collated and forwarded to the authority by a member of the 
local community. 
 
Summary of observations: Parking- levels and possible increase. 
Noise- regarding times of the shop opening. 
Deliveries- concerns over stated times as well as the area of the street these will be 
occurring. 
Potential for accidents on this portion of the road. 
Residence- concerns over who will be living there. 
 
SECTION 17 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 
 
What is the likely effect of the determination of this application on the need for the Local 
Planning Authority to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area? 
None. 

Page 6



EU HABITATS DIRECTIVE 
 
Does the development affect any protected wildlife species? No. 
 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) 
 
Is this development Community Infrastructure Levy liable? Not liable. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Policies: The application has been considered in accordance with national policy and 
guidance, local plans policies and supplementary planning guidance. The main issues 
for consideration in the determination of this application are whether the principle of the 
two stated changes of uses would be appropriate on this site, as well as if the 
adaptations to the structure visually would be acceptable and if the proposed 
development would unacceptably impact the adjacent highway network by virtue of 
increased activity and on street parking. 
 
Policy CW2 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan, up to 2021 
(adopted in 2010), is termed 'amenity', it states that; 'Development proposals must have 
regard for all relevant material planning considerations in order to satisfy' certain 
requirements, one of these being- that 'There is no unacceptable impact on the amenity 
of adjacent properties or land'. The proposed development can be divided into two 
subsections to accurately determine the submissions compliance with this, the first is 
the principle of the change of use, neither the proposed change from A3 to A1 (ground 
floor) nor the first floor conversion into a place of residence would unacceptably impact 
any stakeholder's amenity. 
 
The current lawful use of the building is that of a serviceman's club, a use that would be 
assumed to generate higher levels of activity and noise than that of the proposed. 
Environmental Health were consulted on this application and have suggested several 
conditions that look to limit the impact on residential amenity; The ground floor use will 
only be open to customers between the hours of 07.00 to 23.00 Monday to Saturday 
and 07.00 to 22.00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays, this is to limit potential impacts on 
residents by virtue of activity and noise occurring during inappropriate hours. Deliveries 
will be similarly limited, however between the hours of 08.00 and 20:00, with the 
justification to protect residential amenity, these factors have therefore been amicably 
controlled to where it can be confirmed that the principle of the change of use will be 
compliant with policy CW2 and will not give rise to any unacceptable impacts on 
amenity. In that regard, it is not considered that a condition restricting the use of the first 
floor flat to a use ancillary to the ground floor shop would be reasonable or necessary in 
planning terms. 
 
It should also be noted that the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 allows, in certain circumstances, the change of use of A3 
premises to an A1 use without the need for planning consent. In that regard it should be 

Page 7



noted that nay perceived impact from this development could occur without the need for 
planning consent. 
 
The second subsection that must be assessed is the possible impacts on amenity that 
any physical alterations to the structure will be paired with. The submitted plans show 
that the physical development occurring to the structure is minimal and primarily centres 
around the primary fenestrations of the building, sufficiently minor in nature as to not 
unacceptably impact the amenity of the site nor surrounding residents. The proposed 
development is therefore acceptable and in accordance with policy CW2 of the 
Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan, up to 2021 (adopted in 2010). 
 
Policy CW3 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan, up to 2021 
(adopted in 2010) is termed 'design considerations-highways', it states that; 
'Development proposals must' (...) have 'regard for the safe, effective, and efficient use 
of the transportation network'. Correspondence was undertaken with the authorities 
highways officer to determine the possible effects that the proposed change of use 
would have on the surrounding network, what was determined was that the proposed 
use (A1 ground floor) would require a minimum of two spaces for the ground floor alone. 
What must be noted however is that the current lawful use of the building is that of an 
A3 licensed premise and would hypothetically require (as per the comments) up to 31 
car parking spaces, the fall back therefore is that the building could resume business as 
a club present day, and would be utilising a potential 29 more spaces than that of the 
proposed use. 
 
The Transportation Engineering Manager has also requested that a condition be 
attached to any consent granted restricting the use of the first floor flat to a use ancillary 
to the ground floor shop. Whilst it is accepted that the flat would require 3 no parking 
spaces, given the decrease in parking requirements for the commercial uses as 
described above, there would overall be a significant reduction in the required parking 
levels for the proposed development and therefore such a condition again would not be 
reasonable or necessary in planning terms. 
 
The proposed development therefore would be requiring less on street parking spaces 
than that of the current use, placing less stress on the highway network than the lawful 
use hypothetically could be, there is therefore no basis to state that the proposals do not 
have regard for the safe, effective and efficient use of the transportation network, due to 
the presence of the fall back and the parking that could potentially incur. 
 
A condition has also been requested requiring the provision of bollards adjacent to the 
highway at the front of the site to deter parking at this location. However, it should be 
noted that there are double yellow lines at this location which prevent such parking and 
it is not for the planning system to duplicate controls under other legislation. 
 
Having regard for the above considerations, the proposed development therefore is in 
accordance with policy CW3 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan, 
up to 2021 (adopted in 2010). 

Page 8



Policy SP6 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan, up to 2021 
(adopted in 2010) is termed 'place-making' it states that 'Development proposals should 
contribute to creating sustainable places by having full regard to the context of the local, 
natural, historic and built environment and its special features' one method this can be 
done is through; 'a high standard of design that reinforces attractive qualities of local 
distinctiveness'. The proposed development is paired with minimal changes to the 
exterior of the structure, however it must be noted that the building is currently in a poor 
state of upkeep due to the lack of current use/activity it experiences, this proposal will 
renew the property and provide an opportunity to commence some much needed 
renovation to the facade and claddings. The proposed development therefore visually 
would be exhibiting an acceptably high standard of design and is therefore in 
accordance with policy SP6 of the Policy SP6 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local 
Development Plan, up to 2021 (adopted in 2010). 
 
The proposed development is in accordance with policy CW2, CW3 as well as SP6 of 
the Policy SP6 of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan, up to 2021 
(adopted in 2010) and should therefore be granted permission as per the conditions.  
 
Comments from consultees: No objections raised. 
 
Comments from public: Addressed in above report, it must be noted that it was a 
concern of residents regarding who would be living in the converted first floor space, 
however this is not something that can be controlled through the planning system, 
although it is stated within the design and access statement that the accommodation will 
be ancillary.  
 
Other material considerations: The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental 
and cultural well-being of Wales, has been considered in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle, under section 3 of the Well-Being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. In reaching the recommendation below, the ways of 
working set out at section 5 of that Act have been taken into account, and it is 
considered that the recommendation is consistent with the sustainable development 
principle as required by section 8 of that Act. 
 
Future Wales - The National Plan 2040 was published on 24 February 2021 and forms 
part of the statutory development plan for the county borough.  In addition to this 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) has been amended to take account of Future Wales and 
PPW Edition 11 has also been published on 24th February 2021.  In reaching the 
conclusion below full account has been taken of both Future Wales and PPW Edition 11 
and where they are particularly pertinent to the consideration of the proposals they have 
been considered as part of the officer's report. It is considered that the 
recommendation(s) in respect of the proposals is (are) in conformity with both Future 
Wales and PPW Edition 11. 
 
 
 

Page 9



RECOMMENDATION that Permission be GRANTED 
 
This permission is subject to the following condition(s) 
 
01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five 

years from the date of this permission. 
 REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 
02) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans and documents:  
 Proposed Basement Floor Plan (ref. 102) (received 06.07.2023). 
 Proposed Ground Floor Plan (ref 103) (received 06.07.2023). 
 Proposed First Floor Plan (ref. 104) (received 06.07.2023). 
 Proposed Elevations (ref. 105) (received 06.07.2023). 
 Common Road Elevations (ref. 106) (received 06.07.2023). 
 Blind Wall Side Elevations (ref. 107) (received 06.07.2023). 
 REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the 

Local Planning Authority. 
 
03) The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the following 

times: (a) 07.00 hours to 23.00 Monday to Saturday, and (b) 07.00 hours to 
22.00 hours Sunday and Bank Holidays. 

 REASON: In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with Policy CW2 
of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021. 

 
04) No deliveries shall be taken at or dispatched from the site outside the hours of 

between 08:00 hours and 20:00 hours. 
 REASON: In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with Policy CW2 

of the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021. 
 
05) Prior to the commencement of the use hereby approved arrangements for the 

storage, collection and disposal of commercial waste shall be implemented in 
accordance with a scheme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 REASON: In the interest of public health in accordance with Policy CW2 of the 
Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021. 

 
06) The proposed cycle storage areas catering for both residents of the flat, and 

customers of the shop, shall be completed in accordance with the submitted 
plans, prior to beneficial occupation of the development, and shall be maintained 
thereafter in perpetuity for the use of residents and customers. 

 REASON: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CW3 of 
the Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan up to 2021. 

 
 

Page 10



Advisory Note(s) 
 
The proposed development lies within an area that has been defined by the Coal 
Authority as containing coal mining features at surface or shallow depth.  These 
features may include: mine entries (shafts and adits); shallow coal workings; geological 
features (fissures and break lines); mine gas and former surface mining sites.  Although 
such features are seldom readily visible, they can often be present and problems can 
occur, particularly as a result of new development taking place.   
  
 Any form of development over or within the influencing distance of a mine entry 
can be dangerous and raises significant land stability and public safety risks.  As a 
general precautionary principle, the Coal Authority considers that the building over or 
within the influencing distance of a mine entry should be avoided.  In exceptional 
circumstance where this is unavoidable, expert advice must be sought to ensure that a 
suitable engineering design which takes into account all the relevant safety and 
environmental risk factors, including mine gas and mine-water.  Your attention is drawn 
to the Coal Authority Policy in relation to new development and mine entries available 
at:  
 www.gov.uk/government/publications/building-on-or-within-the-influencing-
distance-of-mine-entries 
  
 Any intrusive activities which disturb or enter any coal seams, coal mine workings 
or coal mine entries (shafts and adits) requires a Coal Authority Permit.  Such activities 
could include site investigation boreholes, excavations for foundations, piling activities, 
other ground works and any subsequent treatment of coal mine workings and coal mine 
entries for ground stability purposes.  Failure to obtain a Coal Authority Permit for such 
activities is trespass, with the potential for court action.   
  
 If any coal mining features are unexpectedly encountered during development, 
this should be reported immediately to the Coal Authority on 0345 762 6848.  Further 
information is available on the Coal Authority website at: 
 www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority  
 
The following advice notes have been requested via consultation with Environmental 
Health:  
  
 1. A sink which is provided with hot and cold water and connected to the 
mains drainage is required for cleaning purposes.  This sink must be separate to that of 
the WC hand wash basin. Reason - to safeguard public health 
  
 2. An adequate number of WC's (including where necessary urinals) and 
hand wash basin must be provided for staff use.  These must be connected to the 
mains drainage system.  The hand wash basin must be provided with a supply of hot 
and cold (or suitably mixed) water.  The WC cubicle(s) must be adequately ventilated by 
a natural or mechanical means. An intervening space must be provided between the 
WC and any food rooms. Reason - to safeguard public health. 

Page 11



  
 3. The applicant shall take note that the premises may require registration as 
a food business in accordance with the provisions of Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 on 
the Hygiene of Foodstuffs, Article 6(2). The premises must also comply with the general 
hygiene requirements contained within ANNEX II of this Regulation, prior to becoming 
operational.   
  
 4. Gas fired appliances must be installed by a competent Gas Safe engineer.  
A certificate or report should be provided by the Gas Safe engineer to show they are in 
a safe, operable condition. Reason - To safeguard the residential amenity. Reason - To 
safeguard the residential amenity. 
  
 5. Electrical works must be undertaken by a competent person.  A written 
report or certificate must be provided by the competent person to show the works have 
been completed and the electrical installation and equipment are safe for use. 
  
 6. Each bedroom will require an escape window - 'The current plans show 
that the bedrooms on the first-floor exit in to a lounge area that contains a cooking 
appliance, this can compromise the escape route in the event of a fire (which would 
most likely start there). So we would want to see an escape window in the bedrooms, or 
a kitchen fire door to separate it off'. 
  
 7. Additional smoke detectors may be required in the residential flat. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



23/0451/COU 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 Planning Committee held on 16th August 2023.
	4 Application No. 23/0451/COU - 54-56 Queens Road, Elliot's Town, New Tredegar, NP24 6DZ.
	23/0451/COU - 54-56 Queens Road, Elliot's Town, New Tredegar, NP24 6DZ - Site Plan


